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INDIVIDUAL PROPERTY/DISTRICT
MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST
INTERNAL NR-ELIGIBILITY REVIEW FORM

Property/District Name: Pleasant Fields Survey Number:M:19-1

Project: I-270/US 15 Multimodal Study, Montgomery and Frederick Co Agency:SHA

Site visit by MHT Staff: _X_no ___ yes Name Date

Eligibility recommended __X__ Eligibility not recommended __ _

Criteria: X A _XB X C D Considerations: A B c D B F G None
Justification for decision: (Use continuation sheet if necessary and attach map)

Pleasant Fields, consisting of an 18th and 19th-century farm complex and located northwest
of Neelsville, east of Route 270 in Montgomery County, is considered eligible for listing on
the National Register of Historic Places under Criteria A, B. and C.

The property was historically a large farm complex which began in the late 18th century, the
land having been acquired in stages beginning in 1755 by William Waters. The property
originally served as a tobacco farm, but later became a horse farm. The property remained
in the locally prominent Waters family until 1932.

The farm consists of several buildings, including the farmhouse--the oldest structure on the
gite; a larger frame, drive-through corncrib; an equipment barn; a frame carriage house; and
0 small frame sheds. The house itself was built in three distinct phases. The oldest
.e2ction is a two-story, three-bay brick structure covered with a gable roof and erected ca.
1797. The middle section, built in the mid-19th century is a somewhat larger, two-story,
two-bay brick structure with paired end chimneys. A semi-hexagonal bay with round arched
windows is located on the first story of the facade. The most recent section, the east end
section, was built in the early 20th century and is a large, three-bay-wide, front-gable
frame structure. A bracketed cornice ornaments the front gable s does a bracketed porch.

Pleasant Fields is eligible for listing on the National Register under Criteria A, B, and C.
Dating to the mid-to late 18th century, Pleasant Fields is illustrative of the county’s long
history of farming (Criterion A). For almost 200 years, it was associated with the locally
prominent Waters family (Criterion B). The farm complex is a cohesive and intact example of
an agricultural grouping, and the house provides a good example of the evolution of a
vernacular domestic building form from the late 18th-century to the early 20th century.

The boundaries of the National Register property should include all of the farm buildings as
well as any surrounding land included in the present ownership boundaries.

Documentation on the property/district is presented in:MHT Inventory Files

Prepared by:Margaret M. Coleman, Sugarloaf Regional Trails (NR Form,1979); Julie Mueller ,
MHT Form, Greenhorne and O’Mara, 1994.

Kimberly Prothro Williams September 20, 1996
o, Reviewer, Office of Preservation Services Date
wNR program concurrence: 25 ves no not applicable
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Survey No. M:19-1

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA - HISTORIC CONTEXT

I. Geographic Region:

Bastern Shore (all Eastern Shore counties, and Cecil)
Western Shore (Anne Arundel, Calvert, Charles,
Prince George’s and St. Mary’s)
X Piedmont (Baltimore City, Baltimore, Carroll,
Frederick, Harford, Howard, Montgomery)
Western Maryland (Allegany, Garrett and Washington)
II. Chronological/Developmental Periods:

Paleo-Indian 10000-7500 B.C.
Early Archaic 7500-6000 B.C.
Middle Archaic 6000-4000 B.C.
Late Archaic 4000-2000 B.C.
Early Woodland 2000-500 B.C.
Middle Woodland : 500 B.C. - A.D. 900
Late Woodland/Archaic A.D. 900-1600
Contact and Settlement A.D. 1570-1750

X Rural Agrarian Intensification A.D. 1680-1815

X Agricultural-Industrial Transition A.D. 1815-1870

X Industrial/Urban Dominance A.D. 1870-1930

__ Modern Period A.D. 1930-Present

Unknown Period ( prehistoric historic)

ITI. Prehistoric Period Themes: Iv. Historic Period Themes:
Subsistence Agriculture .
Settlement i X Architecture, Landscape Architecture,

and Community Planning
Political Economic (Commercial and Industrial)
Demographic Government /Law
Religion Military
Technology Religion
Environmental Adaptation Social/Educational/Cultural
: Transportation
V. Resource Type:
Category: Building
Historic Environment: Rural
Historic Function(s) and Use(s): Domestic/Single Dwelling

Known Design Source:




M; 19-1 -
ACHS SUMMARY FORM -

1. Name Pleasant Fields
T Planning Area/Site Number 3. MNCPPC Atlas Reference
19-1 Map 7 D=10
4, Address 21200 Waters Road
Boyds, Maryland
5. Classification Summary

Category Bulldings

Ownership_ Private

Public Acquisition

Status Occupied/Uheccupied

Accessible__ No

Present use__Agriculture

Previous Survey Recording M-NCPPC Federal___State_X County_X Local___
Inventory of Historical Sites 1976

6. Date ¢.1797 7. Original Owner : William Waters
8. Apparent Condition

Qe .. Good ¢.__Original Site
b._Altered

9. Description :

o The house 1s of two stories, built In 3 sections. The earliest was
./ built ¢. 1797, and is the smallest part. It is bullt of brick with stone
" foundations. The center part, built c. 1880, converted the cottage to a
comfortable two story farmhouse. It is of frame construction as is the
newest section. This part.was bullt c¢. 1900 and is larger than the earlier.
parts. - . At this time gingerbread trim was added all around. Outbuildings
include a frame bank barn, loafimg shed and a double cornerib.

10. Significance : Pleasant Fields is important for its connections with the proml-f

nent Waters famlly & for its architectural representation as the home of a
wealthy late 18th century planter.

‘ © William Waters began to buy this land in 1755. His son Basil inherited

. the 831 acres & married Anne Pottinger Magruder, daughter of Col. éadock -

© Magruder, in 1797. He .probably built the first part of the.house that year.

The 2nd part was built by Basil's great-nephew, Dr, William Waters, & his wife,

« the granddaughter of John Clarke, founder of Clarksburg. The 3rd sectlon was
built in the early 1900s by Dr. Willlam Waters' son, Charles Clark Waters.
The property remained in the Waters family until 1932.

-

11, Date researched and J:'esearche:c'= Margaret Coleman

0 )

1z, Compiler 13. Date Compiled 14, Designation
' Margaret Coleman ' .12/ 78 . Approval___

A

15, Acreage & acres
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INVENTORY FORM FOR STATE HISTORIC SITES SURVEY

BINAME

HISTORIC 1) easant Fields i _, -

AND/OR COMMON : ,
Two Houses and Barn on naters ‘Road near Neelsvz.lle, Maryla,nd

ELOCATION

STREET & NUMBER
21200 ¥Waters iica,d

CITY. TOWN : - ] ' CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT
Boyds s - — VICINTYOF : 8
STATE T ’ COUNTY :
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HCLASSIFICATION | 2 |
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—STRUCTURE _BOTH. .. _WORKINPROGRESS . __EDUCATIONAL ZPRIVATE RESIDENCE
. _sITE PUBLIC ACQUISITION ACCESSIBLE __ENTERTAINMENT - RELIGIOUS
: —OBJECT —IN PROCESS . __YES: RESTRICTED _-GOVERNMENT __SCIENTIFIC
X BEING CONSIDERED —YES: UNRESTRICTED . - . —INDUSTRIAL __TRANSPORTATION
’ N0 ’  _MILTARY  _OTHER:

FJOWNER OF PROPERTY

Name Milestone 'P’raperties

‘Telephone #: (301)657-4100

STREET & NUMBER
7316 Wisconsin Avenue

CITY. TOWN _ T — éTATE z;1P ,éoae :
Bethesda . VICINITY OF i - Maryland, 20()16 -
BLOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Liber #: 3435
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STREET'& NUMBER

SV ToWR — — — —— STATE
-Hockville Maryland
ﬂREPRE SENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS * |
TiTLE Lccatlonal Atlas of Historic f)ltPS in Montgomery Caun‘by. M~NCPFC . Site 19/1.
DATE ——

—FEDERAL __STATE __COUNTY _ LOCAL

DEPOSITORY FOR
SURVEY RECORDS

CITY, TOWN TSTATE . ool

e B 7 S S 5 g TSR £ 0 5 WO e




Wq-

DESCRIPTION
CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
x;EXCELLENT _DETERIORATED —UNALTERED X__ORIGINAL SITE
XX.G00D ——RUINS XX ALTERED —MOVED DATE.
—FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a two story structure, built in three sections. The largest and
newest is the frame east end. It has a three bay facade with the doorway in the west
bay; the double glazed doors have a high transom light overhead. Windows are double
hung sash; the frames are wide, the leads having small pesks or pediments at the center -
and the sills being bracketed. Across the front is a porch with square posts carrying
arched brackets that support the cornice. The main building cornice is bracketed;
there is a central geble on each facade. *

The center section is two bays and two stories, with double chimneys on the east
end. The west bay is a semi-hexagonal bay with round arched windows; the roof of the
bay was once balustraded and the window above opened as a door to the balcony. The
other windows have the same treatment as those of the frame section. The eaves and
raking cornice are bracketed; the brackets being paired; there is an applied board
frieze below the eaves.

The west end is a lower, two story, brick section with a three bay facade. The
central doorway has a small transom light and the windows are double hung sash with
plain surrounds. At the west end there is a flush gable chimmey. The porch across the
facade has square posts with arched brackets supporting the cornice. The main roof
cornice is plain, with an applied board frieze.

The building has a stone foundation. On the west end there are two brick, shed-liké
structures attached.

West of the house are a frame bankbarn, & shed, and a double cornerib.l

The-main house is a fing example of the lifestyles of three eras. The earliest
section was built by Basil Waters, probebly in 1797, the date of his marriage, and his
resurvey of his inherited land.2 Basil developed Pleasant Fields into a tobacco
plantation. He owned many slaves -- essential to successful tobaceo farming -- and
built them a house only slightly smaller than his own.3

The second section of the main house datﬁs from the mid-1800s. Dr. William A. .
Waters, nephew of Basil, built this addition.” Williem was a country doctor; he grew ’
wheat at Pleasant Fields. The significance of William's addition is that the home was
converted from a cramped, 1% story cottage to a 2 story farmhouse of moderate size. >
There seemed to be more money in practicing medicine than in growing tobacco. '

The third section and gingerbread trim were added by Charles Clark Waters,
Willism's son, about 1900. Thi#s section appears to be as large as the first two
combined, and shows the opulence possible in the period before income tax. Charles
raised race horses and-installed a track at the farm; he grew corn and hay in the fields.
He built an ice house and pond a few yards northwest of his house, and dug a trench
from s spring near the main road, a distance of about l% miles, showing the innovative
tendencies of the period.5 The house has a circular staircase at the east end.

(See Attachment Sheet A)

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



Pleasant Flelds
Description {cont.)

Attachment Sheet A

M: 19/1

Pootnotes

1. The preceding condition and description were supplied by Michael
Dwyer, Historian, M-NCPPC.

2. Prince George's Parish Records, located iIn the Hall of Records,
Annapolis, list the marriage of Basil and Anne Waters as March 19, 1797.

3. Basil Water's Will, located in the Montgomery County records, Rockville;
Y-338, filed, 1836. Information concerning the slave's house, found in

the handwritten manuscript written by the daughter of Charles Clark Waters
who was born in the house, and grew up there, Maria E. L. Waters.

"How Dear to My Heart," owned by Mrs. Marian Waters Jacobs, Washington
Grove, Md; written in 1965,

L, Montgomery County Land Record, EBP 27/471 and EBP 27/473. William A.
Waters Buys Pleasant Fields from the widow of his cousin, Zachariah, 1883,

5. Maria Waters, "How Dear to My Heart." Handwritten manuseript owned
by Miss Water's niece, Mrs., Marian Jacobs, Washingtem Grove; 1965.
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PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

—PREHISTORIC  —_ARCHEOLUGY-PREHISTORIC  VCOMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  __RELIGION

__1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION _LAW __SCIENCE

—-1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE

__1600-1699 V/ARCHITECTURE- . _EDUCATION . —MILITARY ) __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
1700-1799 _ART “ __ENGINEERING ) _MusiC © _THEATER
1800-1899 __COMMERCE AEXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY —TRANSPORTATION
1900- __COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY —_POLITICS/GOVERNMENT VOTHER (SPECIFY)

3 _INVENTION Local History
SPECIFIC DATES ) BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The two houses ind barn to be considered are adjacent to the proposed North German-
town Greenbelt Park. Protection of these buildings could be extremely valuable to the
preservation of our heritage as well as add substantial attractiveness to the park.

From 1755 to 1932 Pleasant Fields was owned by the Waters family.2 Three generations
of Waterses farmed the land. The main house reflects its comfortably wealthy 18th and
19th century owners. According to the memoirs of a Waters descendant who grew up there,
the adjacent l-ZL story, red, wooden house was the original slave quarters.3 The barn is one
of three built in the early 20th century.

William Waters began buying the land of Pleasant Fields in 175 .)" By 1759 William owned

31 acres, which he named Conelusion, incorporating grants with fanciful names -- for
e«ample, Molls Rattle, Sarah Love, and Panthers Range.” William did not live at Conclusion
however, but on his northeastern Montgomery County estate, Relmont.

Basil Waters, the son of William, inherited Coneclusion, resurveyed it, and named it
Pleasant Fields.  Basil married Anne Pottinger Magruder, daughter of Col. Zadok Magruder,
and grandaughter of Ninian Beall, a large landholder_who came to America from Scotland,
and who founded the Presbyterian Church in Maryland.

Basil probably built the first section of the house at Pleasant Fields and the
adjacent house for his slaves in 1797, the date of his marriage to Anne.? The smaller
house remains also, and is very similar to the house Basil built for his own family.
Many local black residents believe themselves descendants of the slaves Basil owned and

" named in his will: George, Richard, Thomas, Mary, Clair, Charlotte, Jack, Caroline,
Marish, Horace, Nelson, Harriet, Gubo, Prifo, Ellen, Otho, Mary Ann, Eliza, Kitty, Louisa
and B111.10

Basil's son, Zachariah, inherited Pleasant Fields.ll Zachariah's widow, Eliza,
sold the property to William Alexander Waters, Basil's nephew, in 1883.12 william was a
physician vho practiced medicine in Clarksburg. His wife was Mary Willson, grandaughter
of John Clarke, founder of Clarksburg.l3 William built the second section of the house,
and converted the former slave quarters to a carriage house. He loved Pleasant Fields;

~.-and 18 buried on the farm, carried to his grave by the men who worked
the fields.l¥

e Charles Clark Waters, the son of William and Mary, inherited the estate, and built

e third addition to the main house. His interests were hunting and fishing, and also
raising fine horses; he put in a half-mile race tract at Pleasant Fields.l® He built
three enormous barns, forming three-fourths of a great square around the barnyard, an

aré'mgﬁ %%mﬁtgﬁEﬁtE?%Ec%&ﬁ? animals. He built twenty box stalls in
(see Attachment Sheet B)




Pleasant Fields
Significance M: 19/1

Attachment Sheet B

e

.Trow, and a big corn house with two wagon sheds attached. He added a large carriage house for
.ae Y%nter closed carrisge, the basket sleigh, and the surrey and open carriage for summer
use.

Charles lived a princely life, sparing no expense for his own comfort and hobbies.
He surrounded his house with the stylish elegance of the Victorian era, seen in the house
trim. But Charles was the last Waters to own Pleasant Fields. He and his son, William,
shifted from raising horses to selling cars in the 1920s; they bought the Buick agency in
Gaithersburg, and lost it, as well as the ancestral home, in the Great Depression of the
1930s. Pleasant Fields was sold at a public auction.17

After nearly 200 years of ownership by the Waters family, the estate was sold at =
sheriff's sale to Harry Hoskinson on April 6, 1932.l Hoskinson was a large landowner and
farmer in the area. He did not live at Pleasant Fields, but on the adjacent farm.

Eric ». Johnston, a nationally prominent newscaster, bought the houses and barn from
Hogkinson's heirs in 1951.19 He did not live at Pleasant Fields, but used the estate for
rest and relaxation, indicating excellent maintainance of the property during the period
1951-1965, slightly more than a decade ago.

In 1965 Pleasant Fields was subdivided, and is now owned by eight firms.ac The
buildings nominated belong to Milestone Properties, and are used for storage purposes.
The land is actively farmed for cattle raising, and the barn is used by the farmer for
hay storage, animal care, etc.

o Although the Waters family no longer lives at Pleasant Fields, the two great-grand-
. aughters of William and Mary continue to tend the old graves.

M-NCPPC plans to buy part of this farm, including property 50 feet south of the
barn.2l The main house is approximately 100 feet west of the barn; the smaller house
is about 100 feet east of the barn. Aside from the designated park, the remainder of
Pleasant Fields is zoned for single family houses, indicating future owners who would be
attracted by an historic landmark on the property.

The significance of preserving the two houses and barn on the edge of a proposed
park is to retain a part of their past for Upper Montgomery County residents. The
buildings originated in the late 18th century as part of a tobacco plantation dependent
on slaves. A country doctor of the 19th century continued the farming operation.

. In the early 20th century, before income taxes, the third section and trim were added,
signifying the relative wealth of that pericd. After nearly 200 years of ownership, the
Waters family lost the property in the Great Depression. A prominent person used the

. home as a retreat in the mid-20th century, indicating the charm and desirability of
the landmark. Preserving these historical buildings would grace the adjacent park, and
add appreciably to the preservation of heritage in Upper Montgomery County.
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1.

2.

3
4.

5.

9.

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.

19,

Footnotes

Germantown Masterplan; M-NCPPC, Rockville, Md., January, 1974.
Owners of Pleasant Fields include:

William Waters, -1797. Frederick County Land Records, E/709-711,

Basil Waters and heir, Zachariah Waters, 1797-1883. Annapolis, Hall of Hecords,
Unpatented Certificate of Survey #205; also see BC & GS #43/524.

Ir. William Alexander Waters, Basil's nephew, and William's heir, Charles Clark
Waters, 1883-1932. Montgomery County Land Eecords EBP 27/471 and 473.

Harry Hoskinson, 1932-1951. 538/273.

Eric A. Johnston, 1951-1965. 1523/594.

Milestone Properties, Inc., 1965 - . 3435/316.

Maria Waters, "How Dear to My Heart." Handwritten manuscript owned by Mlss Water's

nilece, Mrs. Marlan Jacobs, Washington Grove; 1965,
Frederick County Land Record Liber &, Folio 709-711l. W. Waters buys Poplar Spring; 1755.

Frederick County paiented Certificate of Survey #918. W. Waters' Conclusion; 1759.

Roger Brooke Farguhar. Ilistorical Montgomery County, Marvliand, 0ld Homes and History.
Baltimore: Honumental Printing Company, 1952,

See Footnote 2 above.

Edith Worley Beatty, The Waters Book. No publisher nor date listed; p. 84. Book belongs
to Mrs. Marian ¥Waters Jacobs, Washington Grove, Md.

Prince George's Parish lecords note the marriage of Basil and Anne Waters, 797,
Montgomery County Wills, Y/338, 1836. Basil Water's will,

Ibid.

See Footnote 2 above.

TiH.S. Boyd, History of Montgomery-County, Maryldnd. Clarksburg; 1879;. p. 100-101,

Wills, HCA 4/471,k1907. Dr. William Water's will. Maria Waters describes his love for the
farm and his burial in her manuscript.
Portrait and Biographical Hecord, 1898; p. 860.

Waters, "llow Dear to My Heart."
See Footnote 2 above.
Ibid,

Who's Who in America. 1958-1959,
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20.

21,

M: 19/1

Liber 3435, Folio 316 lists owners of Pleasant Fields; November 10, 1965:

Milestone and Berk, Inc;
David Milestone Incj
Bradmoor Corp;

Green Tree Corp;
Cadillac Realty Corp;

J. C. Duffy Incs
Huntington Builders Incj
Cameo Builders Inc.

Germantown Masterplan. Maryland-National Capital

Park and Planning Commission, 1974.
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[ Educational
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1 Government
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O Museum
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[ Transportation
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{J Comments

WNER'S NAME:

David Milestone Heirs
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Montgomery County Courthouse
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, (Check One)
) Excellent Bl Good - Foir {T] Detericrated ] Ruins [ -Unexposed
CONDITION (Chock Oney " (Chack One)
£ Altered ; {1 Uncitered ] Moved @ Original Site

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 4 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The house is a two story structure, built in three
sections, The largest and newest is the frame east end. It
has a three bay facade with the doorway in the west bay; the
double glazed doors have a high transom light overhead.
Windows are double hung sash; the frames are wide, the leads
having small peaks or pediments at the center and the sills
being bracketed. Across the front is a porch with square
posts carrying arched brackets that support the cornice. The
main building cornice is bracketed; there is a central gable
on each facade.

The center section is two bays and two stories, with
double chimneys on the east end. The west bay is a semi-
hexagonal bay with round arched windows; the roof of the bay
was once balustraded and the window above opened as a door to
the balcony. The other windows have the same treatment as
those of the frame section. The eaves and raking cornice are
bracketed,; the brackets being paired; there is an applied
board frleze below the eaves.

The west end is a lower, two story, brick section with a
three bay facade. The central doorway has a small transom

At the west end there is a flush gable chimney. The porch
across the facade has square posts with arched brackets sup-
porting the cornice. The main roof cornice-is plain, with an
applied board frieze.

The building has a stone foundation. On the west end
there are two brick; shed-like structures attached.

West of the house: are: a frame bankbarn, a shed, and a
double corncrib.

light and the windows are double hung sash with plain surrounds
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STREET AND NUMBER:

8787 Georgia Avenue

CITY OR TOWN:

Silver Spring

STATE

Maryland
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State Liaison Officer Review: (Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:
National [} State [7] Local [

Signature




M: 19-01

Pleasant Fields

12535 Milestone Manor Lane
Germantown Quadrangle

NR Boundary
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NAME  #(4-1 DR wWm. A. WATERS House
LOCATION BAE. BES + OLD WATERS BD., qs2mANTOWW,

mo.
FACADE <)
PHOTO TAKEN 12./Q[74
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